
Board of Trustees 
 Open Session 

 Tuesday, 
   March 28, 2017 

  4 P.M. 
      Liberty Campus 

 Mini Conference Center 



BALTIMORE CITY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

Board of Trustees 

Dr. S. Todd Yeary, Chair 

Dr. Rosemary Gillett-Karam, Vice Chair 

Dr. Donald A. Gabriel 

Mr. Jay Hutchins 

 Ms. Pamela Paulk 

Dr. Mary E. Owens Southall 

 Ms. Maria Harris Tildon 

Ms. Olayeni Popoola, Student Trustee 



TAB 1 



Page 1 of 2 

BALTIMORE CITY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

UNAPPROVED OPEN SESSION AGENDA 
Tuesday, March 28, 2017, 4 p.m. 

Liberty Campus 
Mini Conference Center 

I. CALL TO ORDER (Dr. S. Todd Yeary, Chair) 

II. ADOPTION OF AGENDA
Approval of the, March 28, 2017 Agenda…..……..…….….…………..……..TAB 1

III. BOARD ACTIONS/CONSENT AGENDA (All actions, requiring a vote).
A. Approval of the February 28, 2017 Minutes….…….…..…..……………..TAB 2
B. College Contracts……………………………………………………………..TAB 3
C. Student Government Association……………………………………….......TAB 4 
D. AFSCME Local # 1870 at BCCC (Ms. Charlene Gray, President)………TAB 5
E. Faculty Senate (Professor Edward Ennels)…..….………………………...TAB 6

Action: Move to approve the Board Actions/Consent Agenda 

IV. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS……………………………………………………..TAB 7

V. COLLEGE POLICIES…………………………………………………………….TAB 8 

A. Social Media Policy and Procedure…….(Dr. Nassim Ebrahimi)…….(ACTION) 

VI. NEW BUSINESS………………………………………………………………….TAB 9

A. Nomination for 2016 Professor Emeriti…(Dr. Tonja Ringgold)….…..(ACTION)
a. Resolution

B. Tuition and Fees Recommendation… (Mr. Calvin Harris, Jr.)…........(ACTION) 

VII. PRESIDENT’S REPORT (Dr. Gordon F. May, President)…………………TAB 10
A. Updates     (INFORMATION) 
 Enrollment Report (Dr. Marguerite Weber, Vice President of Student

Affairs) 
B. Active Search Listing………………………….…………………………..TAB 11 

  (INFORMATION) 



Page 2 of 2 
 

VIII. MOTION FOR ADJOURNMENT 
THE CLOSED SESSION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES IS DESIGNED TO 
DISCUSS PERSONNEL ISSUES; PENDING PURCHASE OF PROPERTY FOR 
THE FUTURE NEEDS OF THE COLLEGE; AND TO OBTAIN LEGAL ADVICE. 
 

IX. NEXT MEETING: Tuesday, April 25, 2017, Mini Conference 
Center, Liberty Campus, 2901 Liberty Heights Avenue, Baltimore, 
MD 21215. 

 

Back to Top 

 

 



TAB 2 



Page 1 of 4 

BALTIMORE CITY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

UNAPPROVED OPEN SESSION MINUTES 
February 28, 2017 

4 p.m. 
Liberty Campus Mini 

Conference Center 

Board Members Present: Dr. S. Todd Yeary, Dr. Rosemary Gillett-Karam, Ms. Maria 
Harris Tildon, Mr. Jay Hutchins, Dr. Donald Gabriel (via conference call), and Ms. 
Olayeni Popoola. Dr. Mary Owens Southall. 

Board Members Absent: Ms. Pamela Paulk 

I. BOARD ACTIONS/CONSENT AGENDA (All Actions requiring a vote.) 

A. Adoption of the February 28, 2017 Agenda 
B. Approval of the January 24, 2017, 2016 Minutes  
C. College Contracts 
D. Student Government Association (SGA) 
E. AFSCME Local # 1870 at BCCC (Ms. Charlene Gray, President) 
F. Faculty Senate (Mr. Edward Ennels) 

Action:  The Board unanimously voted and approved Board Actions/Consent Agenda. 

II. New Business

The Board requested Mr. Harris to join the Board table for a carry-over discussion
from the 3 p.m. Finance Committee Meeting regarding the tuition and fees increase
recommendation.

The Board inquired as to the impact from anticipated revenue and any anticipated
trends in future tuition increases.

Mr. Harris referred to the Finance Committee Book under tab 6 of the report, the
multiyear financial projections, which included current and future revenue projections.
In exhibit 1, revenue projections are listed for multiple years, fiscals 2016 – 2021.
Each year denotes if the monies are actual, requested, or projected.

Trustee Tildon inquires as to where BCCC falls in relationship to other community
colleges in regards to tuition.

BOARD AGENDA 
TAB 2 – ACTION 
MARCH 28, 2017 



Page 2 of 4 

Mr. Harris responded that BCCC tuition continues to be the lowest costing tuition of 
most community colleges. 

Mr. Harris stated that state funding is based upon FTE’s in which our budget 
projections are based upon and tuition and fees would increase our revenue.  The 
in/out of state tuition levels projections have fell beneath actuals since FY15 and FY 
16. 

Action:  Trustee Popoola motioned for the tuition and fees increase 
     recommendations be tabled until the March 28, 2107 Board meeting, this 

 motion was seconded by Trustee Tildon.   

The Board unanimously voted to table any actions on the Tuition and Fees 
recommendations until the March 28, 2017 meeting. 

III.  PRESIDENT’S REPORT *

Dr. May stated that the report would stand for itself with the following comments; 

1. Entered testimony at the February 20, 2017 Budget Hearings
2. Attended the Achieving the Dream 2017 Conference

UPDATES 
A. Enrollment 

Dr. Weber reported that as of today BCCC enrollment is down by 2% which was due 
to “purging”, which is the dropping of student for non-payment of their bills.  Student 
Affairs are now calling these students before they are purged to try and assist them 
with any financial issues that they may be experiencing.  Dr. Weber reports that, per 
Dean Sylvia Rochester, at least 10 purge ready students are called each day.  Dr. 
Weber stated that this new process has proven to be very successful.  Dr. Yeary 
inquired as to the number of students that are eligible for purging, Dr. Weber stated 
that she would get that number and report it at the next Board meeting. 

Dr. Weber reported that in response to Dr. May inquiry regarding the number of 
children are currently in the Clarence Blount Day Care, currently there are 30 
children in the Day Care facility which has a capacity of 36 children. 

Dr. Weber reported on the current activities and issues in the Student Affairs 
Division which include: 

a) More support to the College Completion efforts
b) Monitoring of completion behaviors, i.e., completing admission and

registration processes, in order to identify the highest attrition points and
examine those processes for ways to strengthen student’s abilities to
navigate processes as well as to refine processes.



Page 3 of 4 

c) Develop a structural connection between Student Success Center and the
Career Center that includes cross-training and staff sharing to develop
practices to support college completion/career literacy.

d) Another search for the Director of Disabilities Services due to the decline of
the offer by the selected applicant who was to begin on February 15, 2017.

B. Active Search List 
Board Chair Yeary stated that the Active Search List is information provided 
in the Board Book. 

Closing Remarks: 

Dr. Yeary stated that there are conversations in Annapolis that may have a direct 
impact as to how the college will continue to operate.  Dr. Yeary assured the 
stakeholders that the Board and Dr. May remain committed to BCCC and the work 
that all put forth. 

IV. MOTION FOR ADJOURNMENT
The Board of Trustees meeting adjourned at   5:12 p.m. 

IX. NEXT MEETING

March 28, 2017, Liberty Heights Campus, Mini Conference Center 

ATTENDANCE: 

Dr. Gordon F. May, President 

BCCC Staff Present: 

Tope Aje, Nicole Becketts, Vanessa Bell, Linda Benjamin, Elena Berrocal, Vera 
Brooks, Leslie Brown, Maria Cazabon, Hsin-Yuan Chen, Deborah Childs, Daniel 
Coleman, Angela Donn, Patricia Edwards, Edward Ennels, Charlene Gray, Lyllis 
Green, Nana Gyesie, Wendy Harris, Eileen Hawkins, Kemberly Henderson, Will 
Hug, Shayla Hunter, Joseph M. Hutchins, Bob Iweha, David Xudong Jin, Brian 
O’Connell, Scott Olden, Solomon Iyobosa Omo-Osagie, Anil Malaki, Gregory 
Mason, John T. McCoy, III., Karen Mobley, Tina Mosley, Shaunta Rao, Sylvia 
Rochester, James Revis, Khadijat Sanusi, Scott Saunders,  William Shipley, Sabina 
Silkworth, Daphne Snowden, Chardai Stokes, Chima Ugah, Eileen Waitsman, 
Crystal Washington, Tom Wamalwa, Dr. Marguerite Weber, Dennis Weeks, Jeff 
White, Vincent Whitmore, Brenda Wiley, Andre Williams, Michelle Williams, Leonard 
Willis, Diana Zilberman, 

Others Present: 
Marissa Eby, OLA Senior Auditor 
Devone Delly, SGA President 



Page 4 of 4 

CLOSED SESSION 

The Board voted unanimously, under the Open Meeting Act, State Government 
Article, and Section 10-508, to convene in Closed Session on February 28, 2017, in 
the President’s Conference Room to discuss real estate, personnel and to obtain legal 
advice. 
*Full report on file in the President’s Office

Respectfully submitted, 

Gordon F. May, PhD 
President/CEO 

Back to Top 



TAB 3 



BOARD AGENDA 
TAB 3 – INFORMATION 
MARCH 28, 2017 

Back to Top 

NO COLLEGE 
CONTRACTS



TAB 4 



Page 1 of 2 

     Baltimore City Community College 
 Student Government Association 

    Board Report 
        March 2017 

February 14, 2017 
“Improve Your Interview Skills” Workshop - The BCCC Biotech Student Society held 
a workshop on improving interview skills. The guest speaker was BCCC Associate 
Professor, Dr. Stephen Miller.  The program was held in BioPark Room 228 from 12pm- 
1pm. 

February 14, 2017 
February Expo Mania - Nine vendors and two student clubs set up tables in the upper 
and lower Student Atrium.  The college community was able to get some last minute 
gifts for Valentine’s Day from the local vendors.  The International Student Club (ISC) 
and Veterans Club provided information about their organizations. 

February 17, 2017 
SGA Meeting with Special Guests Debra Vines and Vice President Calvin Harris, 
Jr. - The Student Government Association leadership invited Debra Vines, Community 
College Relationship Manager, from Bellevue University and Vice President for 
Business and Finance, Calvin Harris, Jr., to speak at the February meeting.  Ms. Vines 
presented information about Bellevue University and what opportunities it has to offer 
current BCCC students. Vice President Harris updated the students on the cafeteria and 
the campus shuttle services.  

February 21, 2017 
Negro Baseball League Display - The BCCC Alumni Association, the Office of 
Student Life and Engagement and the Student Government Association sponsored a 
wonderful historical display of the Hubert V. Simmons Museum of Negro Leagues 
Baseball. Negro baseball League Historian Ray Banks took us through a journey of 
historic photos and memorabilia commemorating the era prior to the integration of 
African Americans into the National Baseball League, from the late 1800s to the early 
1950s. The BCCC community also got a special treat as Negro League Baseball player, 
Luther Atkinson came with Mr. Banks to talk to the students, staff and faculty. Mr. 
Atkinson played with the Satchel Paige All-stars. 

February 22, 2017 
Passport Leadership - The Office of Student Life and Engagement, in conjunction with 
the Business & Technology Department and the Student Government Association, held 
its fourth leadership session of the Passport Leadership/Entrepreneurship Program in 
the Mini Conference Center.  The program was well attended by 125 guests. Session 
five is scheduled for March 22, 2017 at 12pm in the Mini Conference Center.  

BOARD AGENDA 
TAB 4 – INFORMATION 
MARCH 28, 2017 



Page 2 of 2 

February 23, 2017 
Author Series with TIME Cover Photographer Devin Allen - The Bard Library/ Book 
Store Author’s Series, in conjunction with the Office of Student Life and Engagement 
and the Student Government Association, welcomed guest photographer Devin Allen, 
who is a Baltimore native and former BCCC student.  Mr. Allen took the time to talk 
about his passion for life and his photography. He collects cameras to donate to the 
youth of Baltimore.  He is also a nominee for TIME Person of the Year.  The program 
was held in the Student Atrium where 41 students, faculty and staff were in attendance. 
After the program, Mr. Allen walked around campus and spoke to students in various 
classrooms. 

February 28, 2017 
The Biotech Network #4 - The BCCC Student Club and the Biopark Biotech Student 
Society sponsored a workshop on internships and career opportunities in 
Bioinformatics.  The event was held at Biopark, Room 228, from 12:00pm – 1:00pm.  
The guest presenter was Dr. Marcus Chibucos from the Institute for Genome Sciences 
at the University of Maryland. 



TAB 5 



Page 1 of 2 

AFSCME Local 1870 Presentation 
to the BCCC Board of Trustees 

 Tuesday, March 28, 2017 

1. Incorrect Uniforms Ordered for Bargaining Unit Employees:   Uniforms ordered for the

Facilities Department were all the same color shirts. We worked with VP Calvin Harris who

investigated the problem and we were told that the company will be doing the different color

shirts for the Facilities Department based on what the union and management agreed to.

2. Equity Study Needed for Bargaining Unit Employee Positions: Salary inequity for

Bargaining Unit employees at BCCC is a matter of great concern to us. Recent job postings

seem to advertise jobs with classification and pay grades that don’t seem to match experience

levels. Union has not received a clear answer about whether HR uses clear guidelines and a

classification scale in hiring of new employees. As a result, there appears to be grossly

uneven compensation and classification of current and new employees at BCCC. We were

informed that the College has already hired a company to start the project to examine

classification scales and employee salaries. Union will be kept abreast of all steps and we

will also be given the final report of how this project is to be undertaken. We remind the

College that per our MOU all employees should be treated in a fair and respectful way in

matters pertinent to compensation and working conditions in the College. There should be

transparency in compensation/classification scales and in job requirements and hiring

processes rather than random decisions made by particular Vice Presidents or HR staff.

BOARD AGENDA 
TAB 5 – INFORMATION 
MARCH 28, 2017 



Page 2 of 2 

3. Access to College Facilities for Bargaining Unit staff:  Most recently, our

Housekeeping staff who were using the PE Center just prior to their 7 am shift were

informed that they could no longer use the equipment there when there was no regular

staff available to open the room. Union leadership met with VP Weber who confirmed

that this is indeed the case. Union sees this as a problem since this new policy contradicts

the BCCC website notice that assures all employees that they have access to the

College’s facilities. In reality, this does not seem to be the case for our Housekeeping

staff who are at work during those times that the PE Center equipment is available for

employees to use. We are requesting re-consideration of decision made by management.



TAB 6 



Page 1 of 4 

BALTIMORE CITY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Report of the Faculty Senate to the Board of Trustees 

March 28, 2017 

I attended two days of hearings in Annapolis on Senate Bill 1127 (Wednesday, March 15, 2017) 
and House Bill 1595 (Thursday, March 16, 2017). Both bills are almost identical in content and 
are in direct response to the 2015 Joint Chairmen’s Report for Baltimore City Community 
College authored by the University of Baltimore’s Schaefer Center for Public Policy. This bill is 
an emergency bill because the state is looking for immediate and significant changes at the 
institution. Faculty are encouraged to watch both hearings through the links provided below. 
Testifying on behalf of the college were our College President Dr. Gordon May, Board Chair 
Reverend Dr. Todd Yeary, Faculty Senate President Prof. Edward Ennels, Student Government 
Association Vice President Akiliah Radford, and Executive Director for Year Up Baltimore 
Roland Selby, Jr. 

Below is the link to the March 15, 2017 Senate Hearing the BCCC-Restructuring Bill, 
SB1127.    

http://mgahouse.maryland.gov/mga/play/d5c24d76-8980-4ef3-8379-
c8664edef246/?catalog/03e481c7-8a42-4438-a7da-93ff74bdaa4c 

Below is the link to the March 16, 2017 House of Delegates Hearing the BCCC-
Restructuring Bill, HB1595    

http://mgahouse.maryland.gov/mga/play/2dc0817f-9d72-4b9d-821a-
f9f555a8112c/?catalog/03e481c7-8a42-4438-a7da-93ff74bdaa4c 

The major changes in the bills that will bring about significant changes to the College if passed 
by the Senate and the House include the following: 

First, BCCC is not being merged with the University System of Maryland as requested by 
our President in the November hearing. Legislation is being put forth to create a restructuring 
board to replace our existing board. Members of this restructuring board will be appointed 
jointly by the Governor and Mayor of Baltimore City. The primary goal of the restructuring 
board will be to create a permanent board for Baltimore City Community College made up of 
board members with backgrounds in higher education, procurement, workforce 
development, business management, reorganization and restructuring. This restructuring 
board shall on or before December 1, 2018 select a new President for Baltimore City 
Community College in accordance with specific criteria outlined in the legislation and 
develop a new strategic plan for the college in consultation with the new President 
selected. The President and Board Chair are strongly oppose to the restructuring board and 
removal of the college president.  
Through careful thought, reflection, and ongoing conversation with faculty and administration, I 
submitted the following to the SEC and the Faculty Senate in support of opposing the Senate Bill 
1127 and House Bill 1595:  

BOARD AGENDA 
TAB 6 – INFORMATION 
MARCH 28, 2017 

https://mail.bccc.edu/owa/redir.aspx?C=0irq2uzJK6MunU9F7WbIDY6atJAeoeIXH80fYnPWGRaKUJ5UPW3UCA..&URL=https%3a%2f%2furldefense.proofpoint.com%2fv2%2furl%3fu%3dhttp-3A__mgahouse.maryland.gov_mga_play_d5c24d76-2D8980-2D4ef3-2D8379-2Dc8664edef246_-3Fcatalog_03e481c7-2D8a42-2D4438-2Da7da-2D93ff74bdaa4c%26d%3dDwMFAg%26c%3d0CCt47_3RbNABITTvFzZbA%26r%3dJOczP6fag-JzajYMYxzmwtGJzA39--laQXeZwySae7A%26m%3dmoLxJOQ5ATK_26GBTRTdMFE2yN-pTCrOXqjZPFxEH54%26s%3djphwyPiO8h5IFPu16eHKuSYJTrFvcd8O6N6p1MAS-xo%26e%3d
https://mail.bccc.edu/owa/redir.aspx?C=0irq2uzJK6MunU9F7WbIDY6atJAeoeIXH80fYnPWGRaKUJ5UPW3UCA..&URL=https%3a%2f%2furldefense.proofpoint.com%2fv2%2furl%3fu%3dhttp-3A__mgahouse.maryland.gov_mga_play_d5c24d76-2D8980-2D4ef3-2D8379-2Dc8664edef246_-3Fcatalog_03e481c7-2D8a42-2D4438-2Da7da-2D93ff74bdaa4c%26d%3dDwMFAg%26c%3d0CCt47_3RbNABITTvFzZbA%26r%3dJOczP6fag-JzajYMYxzmwtGJzA39--laQXeZwySae7A%26m%3dmoLxJOQ5ATK_26GBTRTdMFE2yN-pTCrOXqjZPFxEH54%26s%3djphwyPiO8h5IFPu16eHKuSYJTrFvcd8O6N6p1MAS-xo%26e%3d
https://mail.bccc.edu/owa/redir.aspx?C=Kh66ISSHQ21j76dn7rAfEVaefQn-TsBAFPdzuiZIajmK5T1OS23UCA..&URL=http%3a%2f%2fmgahouse.maryland.gov%2fmga%2fplay%2f2dc0817f-9d72-4b9d-821a-f9f555a8112c%2f%3fcatalog%2f03e481c7-8a42-4438-a7da-93ff74bdaa4c
https://mail.bccc.edu/owa/redir.aspx?C=Kh66ISSHQ21j76dn7rAfEVaefQn-TsBAFPdzuiZIajmK5T1OS23UCA..&URL=http%3a%2f%2fmgahouse.maryland.gov%2fmga%2fplay%2f2dc0817f-9d72-4b9d-821a-f9f555a8112c%2f%3fcatalog%2f03e481c7-8a42-4438-a7da-93ff74bdaa4c


Page 2 of 4 

First, there is no data provided in the JCR to show that such a move will produce the desired 
goals put forth.  Second, in making this recommendation in the JCR, the Schaefer Center unfairly 
places the responsibility of years of poor leadership decisions squarely on the shoulders of a 
president who has only been in office for a little over two years and a new Board who has only 
been active for 5 years. About 5 years ago, a number of our Board members were replaced and a 
new Board chair and College President were appointed to address many of the issues and 
concerns raised in the JCR. The JCR report clearly does not take into account the great work that 
has been done under this new leadership team. Baltimore City Community College needs 
stability. The proposed change in leadership in our Board and College President so quickly again 
does not allow for effective recovery as the institution is now finally in the position to stabilize 
itself to facilitate effective innovative change. 

The Faculty Senate commends our President Dr. Gordon May and Board Chair Reverend Dr. 
Todd Yeary along with fellow Board members for the tremendous progress that BCCC has made 
over these last few years under their steadfast leadership. We strongly disagree with those who 
state that there is a lack of vision and no sense of urgency from our College leadership. Dr. 
Gordon May, has given the College the stability it needs and has demonstrated a commitment to 
serving BCCC students, faculty, staff and the surrounding Baltimore community. Since Dr. 
Gordon May took office over 2 years ago the College has been on a path that has strengthened its 
ties with the community and provided clear leadership for the direction of the institution. Dr. 
Tonja Ringgold, Vice President for Academic Affairs, has extended her support to the Faculty 
Senate since she took office 3 years ago and has improved greatly the relationship between the 
faculty and the administration.  

Over the course of the last three years, all component institutional plans have been refreshed and 
aligned with the College’s Strategic Plan in terms of goals, objectives, and timing. Faculty, 
Associate Deans, and Deans developed objectives for their respective programs and schools to 
support the goals of the Academic Master Plan and the Strategic Plan. Programs are aligned in 
career pathways to ensure we are setting our students on a course for successful employment and 
careers.  

The 2016 Middle States Association of Higher Education visiting team noted the following. 

“The College leadership should be commended for its commitment to a robust strategic planning 
process.” 

We are committed to a continuous process of institutional assessment and academic excellence. 
We are proud of the extensive work that has been accomplished and are fully aware that 
continued efforts are still needed. Faculty, staff, and administrators recognize that our discovery 
and review processes must be ongoing and ever-evolving. Our actions since our last Monitoring 
report in March 2015 has signaled to our industry partners and external community that we are 
responsive to their needs and are dedicated to fulfilling our mission of service to the citizens of 
Baltimore. 

The enrollment decline appears to be levelling off - now is the time for careful and thoughtful 
regrowth. Our students and our community deserve an excellent community college. As an open 
enrollment institution, BCCC serves a unique population that brings with it unique challenges. 
We know there is room for improvement, but I also know that there is no group more committed 
to our student population than ours at BCCC.  We have turned a corner and are now on the path 
to institutional fitness. Faculty have stepped up to the challenge through authentic participation 



Page 3 of 4 

in the organization. The 2016 Middle States Association of Higher Education visiting team 
commended BCCC by noting the following. 

“The Institution is to be commended for the level of faculty ownership in the processes of 
program review, general education assessment and student learning outcomes assessment.” 

Shared governance is encouraged by the administration and realized through the Faculty Senate 
committee structures and my ongoing monthly meetings with our College President and Vice 
President for Academic Affairs.  We are moving forward with a strong strategic plan that is 
propelling BCCC into a new reality as a transforming agent for Baltimore City, the surrounding 
areas, and indeed the state of Maryland. During both hearings I asked that bills not go forth in 
their current form. We support the Mayor working in conjunction with the governor to appoint 
Board members, which will give the city a more vested interest in the College, but we do not 
need to restructure our Board or replace our College President.   

College Updates related to the 2015 Joint Chairmen’s Report for Baltimore City 
Community College 

The College has hired a consulting firm to conduct a staffing audit at the college. This audit 
began in December 2016 and will probability take about a year to complete, according to Mr. 
Bryan Perry, General Counsel and Chief of Staff to the President. The firm is currently review 
Human Resource Policies and will move on to job descriptions within the current structure of the 
institution. This work will include a comprehensive salary study across the institution to ensure 
that our salaries are within a reasonable range for job functions and duties. Outcomes from this 
audit may necessitate training and staff development. 

The College was seeking to strengthen its partnership with the Baltimore City Public Schools by 
becoming a high school site for the Renaissance Academy; however, those discussions have been 
terminated as a result of the bills. The perception being that the college leadership is unstable 
and this may not be a good time to enter into such negotiations. Renaissance Academy will 
remain in its current location.  

The College and Coppin University are working on a partnership to collaborate IT and ERP 
functions that will support the college’s IT infrastructure and implementation of ERP. 

The College is in the process of forming a Workforce Development External Task Force made 
up of key individuals from the community to come up with recommendations for the President 
and the Board for where the college may go with its workforce development efforts.  

There is an RFP our for the Bard Building. There are plans to hopefully develop it into a 
commercial property that would include stores, office space leasing, and certainly space for our 
academic programs. For the years 2014-2016 budget language in the legislation prohibited the 
Board from doing anything with the Bard Building. 

Board Chair Reverend Dr. Todd Yeary asked the legislation to lift some of the restrictions on 
procurement which delay huge purchases.  

Respectfully Submitted, 

Prof. Edward Ennels 



Page 4 of 4 

President of the Faculty Senate 



TAB 7 



NO 
PUBLIC 

PRESENTATIONS 

BOARD AGENDA 
TAB 7 – INFORMATION 
MARCH 28, 2017 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TAB 8 



BOARD AGENDA 
TAB 8 - INFORMATION 
MARCH 28, 2017 

COLLEGE 
POLICIES 



Policy No: 3010 

Title of Procedure: BCCC Social Media Policy 

Applies to (check all that apply): 
Faculty____ Staff ____ Students____ 
Division/Department____ College _X__ 

Topic/Issue: 
Multi-media and social media sites such as Facebook, Twitter, YouTube, Instagram, Wiki, 
Snapchat, and LinkedIn have become powerful tools used by both the College and students to 
communicate with each other, mediate the institutional voice, and enhance the brand and 
reputation of Baltimore City Community College (BCCC). 

Background to Issue/Rationale for Policy: 
To ensure that all social media contributions and content made by the College or members of its 
community conform to the terms of this policy. 

State/Federal Regulations Requirements (cite if applicable): 

 “Institutions of Postsecondary Education – Personal Electronic Account – Privacy
Protection” (MD Senate Bill 210/House Bill 934)

 Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 (FERPA)

 National Junior College Athletic Association (NJCAA)

Related College Policies: 

 IT Security Policy

 Telecommunication Use Policy

 Student Computer Use and Internet Access

 College Advertising Policy

 Faculty/Staff Computer Use and Internet Access Policy

Policy Language and Related Procedures: 
It is the policy of Baltimore City Community College (BCCC) to encourage the appropriate use 
of social media networks (e.g. Facebook, Twitter, YouTube, Instagram, Linkedln, etc.) to expand 
opportunities between students and the College to communicate with each other, provide a 
safe, inviting and familiar social media space for the interaction of all members of the College 
community, and enhance the brand and reputation of the College. Moderators of official BCCC 
social media pages are responsible for ensuring compliance with this policy, including the 
responsibility to 1) protect confidential and proprietary information in compliance with FERPA 
and NJCAA regulations and College privacy and confidentiality policies; 2) respect copyright, 
fair use, related College policies and procedures, and plagiarism standards; 3) obey the Terms 
of Service of any social media platform employed; and 4) share the login information and 
passwords for all social media sites created.  



Any use of the BCCC or BCCC Panthers name or logo for branding or titling of pages, blogs, or 
other similar elements of social media, must be approved in writing by the Director of Marketing 
and Communications prior to use. This policy should not be construed, however, to limit free 
expression. The policy shall not limit the ability of members of the BCCC community from using 
the name of the College (“Baltimore City Community College” or “BCCC”) to identify themselves 
in profiles, discuss matters relating to BCCC, or other similar uses. 

Social media postings should not disclose any information that is confidential or proprietary to 
the College, its stakeholders (e.g. students, faculty, staff, partners, etc.) or to any third party that 
has disclosed information to BCCC. 

Implementation Date: Upon Board Approval 

Originator/Division: Institutional Advancement, Marketing and Research (IAMR) 

Approved by Board of Trustees: 

*This policy, once approved by the Board of Trustees, supersedes all other policies.

[This policy and its related procedures are based on current social media policies listed on
the public websites of the University of Maryland School of Medicine; Holy Trinity Catholic

Church, Washington, D.C.; Best Buy; California State University-East Bay; Ball State 
University (Ind.); Cisco, and the Associated Press] 



Policy No: 3010 

Title of Procedure: BCCC Social Media Policy Procedure 

Applies to (check all that apply): 
Faculty____ Staff ____ Students____ 
Division/Department____ College _X__ 

Topic/Issue: 
Multi-media and social media sites such as Facebook, Twitter, YouTube, Instagram, Wiki, 
Snapchat, and LinkedIn have become powerful tools used by both the College and students to 
communicate with each other, mediate the institutional voice, and enhance the brand and 
reputation of Baltimore City Community College (BCCC). 

Background to Issue/Rationale for Policy: 
To ensure that all social media contributions and content made by the College or members of its 
community conform to the terms of this policy. 

State/Federal Regulations Requirements (cite if applicable): 

 “Institutions of Postsecondary Education – Personal Electronic Account – Privacy
Protection” (MD Senate Bill 210/House Bill 934)

 Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 (FERPA)

 National Junior College Athletic Association (NJCAA)

Related College Policies: 

 IT Security Policy

 Telecommunication Use Policy

 Student Computer Use and Internet Access

 College Advertising Policy

 Faculty/Staff Computer Use and Internet Access Policy

Policy Language and Related Procedures: 
It is the policy of Baltimore City Community College (BCCC) to encourage the use of social 
media networks such as Facebook, Twitter, YouTube, Instagram, Linkedln and all others, to 
expand opportunities between students and the College to communicate with each other, 
provide a safe, inviting and familiar social media space for the interaction of all members of the 
College community, and enhance the brand and reputation of the College. 

This Social Media Policy applies to all online and mobile platforms— including multi-media, 
social networking sites, blogs and wikis for professional use— for sharing content and 
information, controlled by BCCC or hosted by others, on which members of the College 
community engage in discussions or activities relating to BCCC, the Business and Continuing 
Education Division (BCED), and affiliated academic, student, athletic and training programs and 
sites.  



 
This policy covers members of full-time and adjunct faculty and full- and part-time employees of 
the College, its contractors and students. The policy does not apply to the personal social media 
sites of faculty, employees, contractors, and students although communication on such sites by 
persons identified as having an affiliation with the College should be handled judiciously. 
 
Please be aware that violation of this policy may result in disciplinary action up to and including 
termination. Common sense is the best guide if you decide to post information in any way 
relating to BCCC. If you are unsure about any particular posting, please contact the Director of 
Marketing and Communications (“the Director”) for guidance.  
 
Social media sites representing any facet of BCCC in an official manner should be reported to 
and shall be coordinated by the Director, who shall devise and maintain official login access to 
and administrative control for the College on all such sites. This is also to ensure maximum 
exposure for these sites, ensure that sites adhere to College branding standards and the 
institutional voice, and maximize collaboration between all parties representing the College in 
the social media space. 
 

1. Core values. In areas where this policy does not provide a direct answer to how 
members of the College community should handle their social media questions, 
members should use their best judgment and take the most thoughtful and prudent 
action possible, bearing in mind the need of BCCC and each member to preserve 
accountability in all discussions or activities relating to the College, the use of its name 
and/or logo(s) in all social media, and the spirit of our Core Values. 
 
• Be mindful – a community post or blog is often visible to the entire world, and can be 
shared by others in ways you cannot control. Remember that what you write is public, 
and will remain public for a very long time (perhaps permanently).  
 
• Be respectful – BCCC is an open and accessible community of higher education that 
encourages free expression and values civil debate. If you disagree with others, do so 
with civility. Respect your audience, express your views with appropriate language, and 
be respectful of the College and its Core Values. 
 
• Respect the privacy of others – do not publish the personal information of others in 
the community without their permission or, in the case of children under 13, written 
permission of their parents. This is particularly important in BCCC programs which 
engage school-age children, in which some parents do not wish their children’s personal 
information and images to be shared online. 
 

2. Use of Official Name and Logo. Any use of the BCCC or BCCC Panthers name or logo 
for branding or titling of pages, blogs, or other similar elements of social media, must be 
approved in writing by the Director prior to use. Requests for prior consent to use such 
names or logos should be made to the Director. Permission to use the College name or 
logo, or that of any of its entities, may be revoked at any time at the sole discretion of 
BCCC. This policy should not be construed, however, to limit free expression. The policy 
shall not limit the ability of members of the BCCC community from using the name of the 
College (“Baltimore City Community College” or “BCCC”) to identify themselves in 
profiles, discuss matters relating to BCCC, or other similar uses. 
 

3. Duties of Owners and Moderators. Moderators of official BCCC social media pages 
are responsible for ensuring compliance with this policy, including the responsibility to: 
 



 Protect confidential and proprietary information: Do not post confidential or 
proprietary information about BCCC, its students, employees, or alumni. Employees 
must still follow applicable federal requirements such as FERPA and HIPAA, as well 
as NJCAA regulations. Adhere to all applicable College privacy and confidentiality 
policies. Employees who share confidential information do so at the risk of 
disciplinary action including termination. 

 

 Respect copyright; fair use; the College’s Student Computer Use and Internet 
Access policy and procedure; and plagiarism standards: When posting, be mindful of 
the copyright and intellectual property rights of others and of the College. 

 

 Terms of service: Obey the Terms of Service of any social media platform employed. 
 

 Creation of new account: Anyone wishing to create a new social media account on 
behalf of the College or any of its units must fill out the social media account request 
form and the Director or designee as an administrator. 
 

 Login information: To assure the College’s ability, as well as the responsibility, to 
appropriately monitor social media, the login information and passwords for all social 
media sites created by any college unit must be sent to the Director or designee.  
 

4. Privacy. BCCC employees should be mindful that any opinions or personal information 
they disclose about themselves or colleagues may be linked to the College’s name. 
That’s true even if employees restrict their pages to viewing only by friends. Take the 
time to customize your privacy settings on Facebook and other social media channels to 
determine what you share and with whom. Remember: Shares, retweets and similar 
copying by others means you can no longer expect any of your content to remain truly 
private in social media. 
 

5. Personal Use of Social Media. Faculty and staff’s internet postings on BCCC sites 
should not disclose any information that is confidential or proprietary to the College. If 
you comment on any aspect of the College’s business or any policy issue in which 
BCCC is involved and in which you have responsibility, you must clearly identify yourself 
as a BCCC employee or member of faculty in your postings or blog site(s). Your Internet 
posting should reflect your personal point of view, not necessarily the point of view of 
BCCC. Because you are legally responsible for your postings, you may be subject to 
liability if your posts are found defamatory, harassing, or in violation of any other 
applicable law. You may also be liable if you make postings which include confidential or 
copyrighted information (music, videos, text, etc.) belonging to third parties. All of the 
above mentioned postings are prohibited under this policy. 

 
6. Additional Information 

 
Contact the Director of Marketing and Communications for additional assistance. 

 
Implementation Date: Upon Board Approval 
 
Originator/Division: Institutional Advancement, Marketing and Research (IAMR) 
 
Approved by Board of Trustees:  
 



*This procedure, once approved by the Board of Trustees, supersedes all other 
procedures. 

 
[This procedure and its related policy is based on current social media policies listed on the 

public websites of the University of Maryland School of Medicine; Holy Trinity Catholic 
Church, Washington, D.C.; Best Buy; California State University-East Bay; Ball State 

University (Ind.); Cisco, and the Associated Press] 



TAB 9 



BOARD AGENDA 
TAB 9 - ACTION 
MARCH 28, 2017 

NEW BUSINESS

A. PROFESSOR EMERITUS
a. Resolutions

B. TUTION AND FEES RECOMMENDATIONS



New Business – Nominations for Emeriti Faculty 
Tonja L. Ringgold, Ed.D. 

Academic Affairs Division (AA) 

In accordance to Emeritus Designation Policy (policy no. 1008), The  Baltimore City 
Community College Faculty Senate, Vice President for Academic Affairs, and President, 
support the endorsement of the nominations of the following three retired faculty for the rank 
of Professor Emeritus: 

1. Carlton Leverette, Professor of Art
2. H. Bradford Lyman, PhD, Professor of Sociology
3. C. Ann Ritter, PhD, Professor of English

Following is a brief description of each of the aforementioned and reasons why they are 
deserve ng of such an honor.  In greater detail, the full Emeritus packets for each nominee is 
provided. 

• Professor Carlton Leverette began his tenure at Baltimore City Community College in
September 1969. At that time, he was one of the first African American faculty hired at
the college. Professor Leverette's initial connection with the college began in 1947 as a
student with what was then, Baltimore Junior College, located within Baltimore city
College High School. Professor Leverette has taught and nurtured generations of students,
faculty and staff and hundreds credit him with making a valuable difference in their lives.
His talents of creativity have been sought after by many institutions and he has earned
numerous awards and honors for his ceramics, sculptures and art work  both nationally and
internationally. His art has been described as pieces executed with intelligence, passion and
meticulous attention to the smallest detail of design and finish. Wherever Professor
Leverette exhibits his art he carries the name of Baltimore City Community College and
we are honored with him.

BOARD AGENDA 
TAB 9 - ACTION 
MARCH 28, 2017 



• H. Bradford Lyman, PhD, Professor of Sociology began his tenure at Baltimore City
Community College August 1979. During his 35 years of service Dr. Lyman served as a
Sociology professor, department chair of the Social and Behavioral Sciences department a
post he manned with integrity.  Dr. Lyman served as chair and was a member of several
department and Faculty Senate committees as well as President  of the Faculty Senate. Dr.
Lyman also served as a dedicated member/chair of several college-wide committees as well as
several Middle States Self-Study t e a m  groups. Dr. Lyman's professional activities and honors
are extensive and noteworthy. He has authored and published numerous articles in professional
journals. He has been sought after on numerous occasions to make presentations at
conferences and workshops locally and nationally.  Dr. Lyman is one of a select group of
BCCC faculty who has been honored for teaching excellence by the National Institute for
Staff and Organizational Development. Over the years he has traveled abroad and incorporated
what he learned into his teaching for the benefit of his students.

• C. Ann Ritter, PhD, began her career as an Associate Professor in the Physical Education
department at the Community College of Baltimore in 1969. During the early years, she taught
volleyball, aerobics, and basketball and was the head coach of the women's lacrosse team.  Dr.
Ritter made a huge impact in the Physical Education department and was an avid athlete
herself.  Upon earning her English degree in graduate school, Dr. Ritter moved over to the
English department where she still divided her time between teaching English and Physical
Education (1975-1978).   Dr. Ritter moved to the English department permanently in 1978
where she served until her retirement in 2014.  During her service in the English  department
she  was  noted  for  her  tireless  work  on  the  Textbook  Committee,  Final  Exam Committee,
Scholarship   Committee,  and  Reading  committee.  She a l so  s e r v e d  as the Reading
Coordinator from 1996-2009.   During this period, Dr. Ritter became a member of the Mid-
Atlantic College Reading Association (MACRA) and was elected as its president in 2003.  As
faculty, Dr. Ritter is most  noted  for  her  longstanding  role  as Faculty  Senate President,  a
post  she passionately  and diligently  served  in for  14 years (1994-2008). Beyond her
professional service to the College, Dr. Ritter mentored and housed homeless BCCC students
until the students were able to obtain services that helped them transition to their homes.

For their countless, notable accomplishments and excellence in teaching, advising, and 
mentoring, which still continues today, Professor Carlton Leverette, Dr. H. Bradford Lyman, 
and Dr. Ann C. Ritter, all worthy of the distinction and designation of "Professor Emeritus" are 
presented for approval by the Board of Trustees. 

Return to Agenda



















































































New Business – Resolution for Emeriti Faculty 
Tonja L. Ringgold, Ed.D. 

Academic Affairs Division (AA) 

Resolution for Emeriti Faculty 

In accordance with the policy and procedure for Emeritus designation, upon approval, a Board 
resolution naming and honoring the individual as “Professor Emeriti” shall be awarded.   
Attached are the Emeriti resolutions for: 

• Professor Carlton Leverette
• Dr. H. Bradford Lyman
• Dr. Catherine Ann Ritter

Return to Agenda 

BOARD AGENDA 
Tab     – Action 
March 28, 2017 



Resolution to Confer Emeritus Status 

WHEREAS, Dr. H. Bradford Lyman, served with distinction during his 35 years of employment 
at Baltimore City Community College as a Sociology professor, and provided  exemplary service 
in all  roles until his retirement from the College on June 30, 2014; and 

WHEREAS, Dr. Lyman was held in high regard by his colleagues and students for excellence in 
teaching, advising, mentorship and dedication to the field of Sociology to the extent that in 1992, 
Dr. Lyman was honored as the first Baltimore City Community College recipient of the BCCC 
Faculty Excellence Award, later he was bestowed the esteemed Kathleen Rogers Faculty Award; 
and 

WHEREAS, Dr. Lyman work tirelessly on college-wide committees, several Middle States Self-
Study Teams, and earned the respect of many through his active participation in the Faculty Senate, 
the Senate Executive Committee, and service as the Faculty Senate President; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that The Board of Trustees of Baltimore City 
Community College, at its regular meeting on March 28, 2017, and by unanimous recommendation 
of the Faculty Senate and full endorsement by the Vice President for Academic Affairs and BCCC 
President, approved and voted unanimously to confer to Dr. H. Bradford Lyman designation as 
Distinguished Professor Emeritus, all in recognition of his contribution as an educator and leader 
who promoted and exhibited excellence to the benefit of the scholastic community, and the citizens 
of the City of Baltimore and the State of Maryland. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this RESOLUTION was established in the permanent 
minutes of this Board, and that a copy of it be given to Dr. H. Bradford Lyman.  ADOPTED by 
the Baltimore City Community College Board of Trustees in its regular meeting, March 28, 2017. 

S. Todd Yeary, PhD        Gordon F. May, PhD 
Chair, BCCC Board of Trustees          President/CEO  



Resolution to Confer Emeritus Status 

WHEREAS, Professor Carlton Leverette, served with distinction during his 47 years of 
employment at Baltimore City Community College as an Art professor, and provided  exemplary 
service in all  roles until his retirement from the College on June 30, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, Professor Leverette began his association with Baltimore City Community College, 
then known as Baltimore Junior College in 1947, as a student and was one of only a few African 
American students, and in 1969 was hired as one of three African American instructors; and 

WHEREAS, during his tenure as Professor of Art, Professor Leverette was regarded as an 
esteemed colleague who participated in over 100 grouped and one-man juried art exhibits in the 
community of Baltimore City and was selected by internationally known quilt maker Faith 
Ringgold for exhibition in the Texas National at Stephen F. Austin State University, Nacogdoches, 
Texas; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that The Board of Trustees of Baltimore City 
Community College, at its regular meeting on March 28, 2017, and by unanimous recommendation 
of the Faculty Senate and full endorsement by the Vice President for Academic Affairs and BCCC 
President, approved and voted unanimously to confer to Professor Carlton Leverette designation 
as Distinguished Professor Emeritus, all in recognition of his contribution as an educator and 
leader who promoted and exhibited excellence to the benefit of the scholastic community, and the 
citizens of the City of Baltimore and the State of Maryland. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this RESOLUTION was established in the permanent 
minutes of this Board, and that a copy of it be given to Professor Carlton Leverette.  ADOPTED 
by the Baltimore City Community College Board of Trustees in its regular meeting, 
March 28, 2017. 

S. Todd Yeary, PhD        Gordon F. May, PhD 
Chair, BCCC Board of Trustees          President/CEO  



Resolution to Confer Emeritus Status 

WHEREAS, Dr. Catherine Ann Ritter, served with distinction during her 47 years of employment 
at Baltimore City Community College as a Physical Education and English professor, and provided 
exemplary service in all  roles until her retirement from the College on July 31, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, Dr. Ritter was held in high regard by her students and colleagues for effective 
teaching, coaching, mentoring, advising, and dedication in English/Reading, all qualities for which 
she was honored by BCCC with two distinctive faculty awards; the BCCC Faculty Excellence 
Award and the Kathleen Rodgers Faculty Award; and 

WHEREAS, Dr. Ritter earned and cherished the support and respect of her colleagues through 
active participation in the Faculty Senate, the Senate Executive Committee, and through service 
as the Faculty Senate President for 14 years; and  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that The Board of Trustees of Baltimore City 
Community College, at its regular meeting on March 28, 2017, and by unanimous recommendation 
of the Faculty Senate and full endorsement by the Vice President for Academic Affairs and BCCC 
President, approved and voted unanimously to confer to Dr. Catherine Ann Ritter designation as 
Distinguished Professor Emeritus, all in recognition of her contribution as an educator and leader 
who promoted and exhibited excellence to the benefit of the scholastic community, and the citizens 
of the City of Baltimore and the State of Maryland. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this RESOLUTION was established in the permanent 
minutes of this Board, and that a copy of it be given to Dr. Catherine Ann Ritter.  ADOPTED by 
the Baltimore City Community College Board of Trustees in its regular meeting, March 28, 2017. 

S. Todd Yeary, PhD        Gordon F. May, PhD 
Chair, BCCC Board of Trustees          President/CEO  



B. TUTION AND FEES RECOMMENDATIONS 

BOARD AGENDA
TAB 9 - ACTION
MARCH 28, 2017



Page 1 of 2 

Financial Budgetary and Tuition and Fees Recommendation 
Vice President Calvin Henry Harris Jr. 

Business and Finance Division 

As a follow-up to discussions held during the February meetings, please allow me to 
review the recommended fiscal 2018 tuition and fees levels for the College.  

The College maintains multi-year projections, and has continued to do for at least the 
last three years. For each of the last two years, the Board has approved modest credit 
tuition increases, and a modest increase was planned for the fiscal year 2018.  

During the February 2017 meeting, I discussed how the proposed increase for 2018 
would be even smaller than we proposed to the Executive and Legislative branches. 
This is partially due to Governor Hogan’s “Student Debt and Tuition Relief Initiative.” 

Tuition Adjustments for Fiscal Year 2018 

Source, Maryland Association of Community Colleges “2017 Databook”, March 2017 

BOARD AGENDA 
TAB 9 – ACTION 
MARCH 28, 2017 



2 

Since the February 2017 meeting, the Maryland Association of Community Colleges 
(“MAAC”) released their “Databook.” This data provides evidence of the College’s 
standing as one of the most affordable in Maryland from a tuition and fees perspective. 

Similar to the past two years, when increases were enacted, the College has the lowest 
in-state tuition rate for Baltimore City residents (representing the overwhelming majority 
of the student population) and one of the lowest for Marylanders.  

The column entitled “Resident of Maryland, Outside Service Area” represents the 
amount a Baltimore City resident would pay at any Maryland community college. In that 
case, the average cost of $135 is much lower than any other college in the state (the 
next lowest, Hagerstown, is still $62 higher). For non-Baltimore City residents, the only 
area college with comparable costs is Anne Arundel, which is just $1 lower than BCCC. 

Therefore, the College recommends modest increases of less than 2% to Tuition levels 
for fiscal 2018, starting with the fall 2017 semester. 

Fees Adjustments for Fiscal Year 2018 

Consistent with prior years, such as March 2016 when the Application Fee was 
eliminated, the College maintains an on-going review of its fees structure to ensure that 
appropriate levels are maintained and potential barriers are resolved.  

For this year, increased focus was placed on testing fees, which was analyzed and 
discussed by the Budget Council. Following the Council’s review and analysis, a 
recommendation was made to increase exam testing fees by $10. For areas such as 
Science, Nursing, and Writing, the testing fee adjustment will be from $35 to $45. In 
other areas, the testing fee adjustment will be from $25 to $35. With agreement by the 
Vice President for Business & Finance, this adjustment is proposed for fiscal year 2018. 

Therefore, the College recommends an increase of $10 to Exam Testing Fees for fiscal 
2018, starting with the fall 2017 semester. 

With other colleges expected to increase both their tuition and fee levels this 
year, the modest increases will maintain the College’s affordability status. BCCC 
will remain the most affordable college for Baltimore City students. 

Recommendation: 

The Vice President for Business & Finance recommends the following tuition 
adjustments starting in the fall 2017 semester (i.e. fiscal year 2018): 

• An increase from $106 to $108 in the In-State tuition rate ($2 or 1.89%),
• An increase from $270 to $275 in the Out-of-State tuition rate ($5 or 1.85%),
• An increase of $10 in Exam Testing fees.

The president agrees and recommends these tuition and fee increases for fiscal 
year 2018. 



TAB 10 



Page 1 of 5 

Baltimore City Community College (BCCC) 
2901 Liberty Heights Ave. Baltimore, Maryland 21215 

President’s Board Report … March 28, 2017 

Although hardly an exhaustive list, the items below represent some of my meetings, 
activities, and initiatives since my February Report to the BCCC Board of Trustees. 

a) Met with BCCC Foundation Board of Directors, giving the President’s Report on
March 8, 2017.

b) Attended the Year Up “Closing the Opportunity Divide Dinner” with Year Up Board
of Directors, Corporate Sponsors, and Staff on March 8, 2017.

c) Participated in the Human Resources sponsored Civility Session in the GAARE
Auditorium on March 10, 2017.

d) Hosted Coppin State University President, Dr. Maria Thompson and her staff to
discuss a potential Financial Aid partnership on March 13, 2017.

e) Participated in Hearings/Testimony preparation meeting with members of the
leadership team on March 13, 2017.

f) Provided testimony opposing Senate Bill 1127 (BCCC-Restructuring) before the
Senate Education, Health, and Environmental Affairs Committee on March 15,
2017. 

g) Provided testimony opposing House Bill 1595 (BCCC Restructuring) before the
House Appropriations Committee on March 16, 2017.

h) Participated in the Maryland Council of Community College Presidents (MCCCP)
meeting in Annapolis on March 17, 2017.

i) Participated in conference call with the League of Innovation to discuss the
possibility of BCCC hosting their National Conference in 2018 on March 20, 2017.

j) Met with AFSCME Local 1870 Leadership in our monthly meeting on March 21,
2017. 

k) Hosted the President’s Advisory Council meeting on March 21, 2017.

l) Participated in the Maryland-District of Columbia College Compact meeting on
March 22, 2017 at the University of Maryland Baltimore.

BOARD AGENDA 
TAB 10– INFORMATION 
MARCH 28, 2017 



Page 2 of 5 

m) Attended the P-TECH Task Force meeting on March 22, 2017.

n) Met with SGA President, Devone Delly on March 23, 2017 for our monthly meeting.

o) Met with Faculty Senate President, Professor Edward Ennels, on March 23, 2017
for our monthly meeting.

The following are informational items offered by members of President’s Staff (in no 
particular order): 

1) Vice President of Student Affairs, Dr. Marguerite Weber, hosted the College Bound
Counselor’s Breakfast/Professional Development Day.  Student Affairs staff used
the opportunity to convey information about BCCC programs and services to all in
attendance.

Attended the Achieving the Dream National Conference, gaining information about
advising redesign and enhancing support services for personal management
(especially financial literacy and emotional resilience).

Met with Dr. Stefanie DeLuca (Johns Hopkins University researcher) to discuss
students’ enrollment patterns, specifically, why some Baltimore City students opt
to enroll in for-profit trade schools.

The BCCC Men’s and Women’s Basketball Teams had successful seasons.  Our
Men’s Team finished the regular season in 3rd place in the MDJUCO, while our
Women’s team finished in 2nd place in the conference.  Both teams lost in the
MDJUCO Tournament Championship game.  It was a great season for both BCCC
teams. Our student-athletes and coaches represented BCCC well.

Job Location and Development Specialist, Robert Ayers, identified nineteen (19)
additional internship opportunities and seven (7) employment opportunities for
BCCC students.

The International Student Office conducted an orientation for 29 international
students.  Presentations were made by the Bursar’s Office, Judicial Affairs, Title
IX, Student Life & Engagement, Health and Wellness, and English Language
Instruction.

2) Vice President of Business and Continuing Education (BCED), Gregory Mason,
reported that 1,584 FTE’s (81%) of the FY 2017 goal has been generated.

BCED hosted the Baltimore City Police Department’s Basic Investigator School
the week of February 27-March 3, 2017 at the Harbor Campus.  Police
Commissioner Kevin Davis spoke to the police detectives.



Page 3 of 5 

Attended the BWI Partnership meeting to hear Michael Moore, President/CEO of 
Tradepoint Atlantic. 

Met with Living Classrooms to discuss partnering/offering training at their sites. 

3) Chief of Staff and General Counsel, Bryan Perry, Esq., is currently leading the
Human Resources Department during the search for the Human Resources
Executive Director.

There are currently 29 active PIN search campaigns and 16 active contractual
search campaigns.

HR facilitated nine Professional Development workshops in February with 46
attendees.  The debut of two new workshops (Customer Service and Small Group
Dynamics) were introduced.  Employees that have satisfied the 20 PD hours total
171.  Two additional new workshops have been developed though not yet
facilitated (Emotional Intelligence and Time Management).

4) Chief Internal Auditor, Lyllis Green continues to assist the Office of Legislative
Auditors in their triennial fiscal compliance audit of the College.  The auditors
began their 220 day visit to BCCC on November 30, 2016.

Attended the College’s Legislative Budget Hearings on February 16 and February
20, 2017 in Annapolis.

5) Chief Information Officer, Dr. Ray Barghi, attended two BCCC Legislative Budget
Hearings in Annapolis (February 16 and February 20, 2017) during his first week
of employment.

To-date in FY 2017 48 ERP Project Update meetings have been held for 343
stakeholders internally and externally.

Has had multiple meetings with IT staff and other internal stakeholders as well as
State and higher education IT partners.

6) The Director of Government and External Affairs, Shanetta Paskel, Esq. continues
to provide BCCC with legislative advice and suggestions during the 437th Session
of the Maryland General Assembly which concludes on April 10, 2017 (Sine Die).

Coordinated meetings for President May with multiple legislators in the Senate and
House of Delegates.

Coordinated BCCC’s participation in Student Advocacy Day in Annapolis.



Page 4 of 5 

7) Academic Affairs Vice President, Dr. Tonja Ringgold led the College’s Achieving
the Dream (AtD) application process to a successful conclusion.  We are now an
official AtD institution.

The Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) program collaboration between the
Accounting programs of Coppin State University and BCCC is now being
continued for the fourth year.

Eighteen new STEM Scholars were inducted into the program bringing the current
number to 50 (the largest number yet).  Additionally, 35 BCCC STEM Scholars
attended the 31st Black Engineer of the Year Award Global Competitiveness
Conference in Washington, DC.

A Dental Hygiene event “Sealant Saturday” was held at BCCC and other locations
across the state in conjunction with the Maryland Dental Hygienist Association.
This event provided dental hygienist students an opportunity to practice their craft,
prolonging the enamel of patients between the ages of five and eighteen free of
charge.  The event was held on Saturday, February 25, 2017.

The Nursing 4.0 Retention Grant is servicing over 40 students per month, providing
tutoring and clinical supports.

Congratulations to BCCC Professor Nataliya Reznichenko on the Quality Matters
(QM) recognition for her online MAT210 Advanced Calculus course.  This is the
departments’ (Mathematics and Engineering) fifth QM class.

8) Interim Vice President of IAMR, Dr. Nassim Ebrahimi collaborated on the
coordination of the February 3, 2017 70th Anniversary kick-off celebration.

Supported and attended Student Advocacy Day in Annapolis.

Assisted with responses to the Department of Legislative Services (DLS),
questions, written testimony, and budget hearing preparations.

Alumni, Community Relations, and Events recruited Roy Banks to display his
Negro Baseball League Exhibit on Tuesday, February 21, 2017 in recognition of
Black History Month and further celebrate the BCCC 70th Anniversary.

Institutional Research collaborated with the Dean of Student Development to
develop tracking codes for students receiving disability services to prepare for
institutional compliance with upcoming new MHEC requirements.

Marketing and Communications conducted live social media broadcasts and key
stakeholder interviews for the 70th Anniversary.  Also created the 70th Anniversary
Social Media Calendar.



Page 5 of 5 

Grant Development reported $5,495,432 total grants for FY 2017 (to-date).  
Continuation/renewal grants awarded total is $4,901,278 while new awards total 
$594,159. 

9) Chief of Staff and General Counsel, Bryan Perry, Esq., is serving on the 2017
Maryland State Plan for Postsecondary Education Writing Group.  The focus is on
innovative use of technology in the classroom and student success.

On January 25, 2017 the Board of Public Works (BPW) granted BCCC approval
to issue a Request For Proposal (RFP) for the Bard Building.

BCCC received two successful bids on the last ERP solicitation.  BCCC is now in
the process of reviewing the bids, and will soon be opening the price proposals for
each bid.

Reviewed 18 contracts and MOU’s on behalf of the College.

10) Vice President of Business and Finance, Calvin Harris, Jr. renegotiated the lease
of North Pavilion with Bon Secours Health System (BSHS).  Pending final review 
by the Department of General Services (DGS), the lease will have BSHS complete 
approximately $2 million in needed repairs and renovations in exchange for a long-
term lease. 

The Chief Budget Officer worked directly with the Department of Legislative 
Services (DLS) staff in preparation of the College’s responses for Fiscal 2018 
Legislative Budget Hearings. 

The Controller’s Office reported that Accounts Payable processed over 300 
invoices with an on-time payment rate of 100% with no late invoices.  

Respectfully submitted, 

Gordon F. May, PhD 



BCCC ENROLLMENT REPORT

BOARD AGENDA
TAB 10 - INFORMATION
MARCH 28, 2017



Page 1 of 2 

Spring 2017 Registration (FY 2017) 
Total Headcount 

4,149 4,149   4,149 
3,956 4,028  4,075

3,825 
3,448 4,042      4,042 4,040 

3,795 3,878 3,915   3,974 

2,801 3,463 

2,414 
2,619 

1,857 
1,671 1,857 2,189 

1,264 1,793 1,847 
1,645 

933 
1,234 

600 
428 881 

521 

178 
63 56 49 42 35 28 21 14 7 0 7 14 21 28 35 42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49 50 

            ENROLLMENT REPORT 
Dr. Marguerite Weber 

Vice President for Student Affairs - Student Affairs Division (SA) 

As of March 15, 2017, for Spring 2017, we have: 
• Enrolled 4,044 credit students compared to 4,157 (-3%) in Spring 2016

Initiatives launched in spring to address retention and recruitment: 
1. Deliver more intentional college completion planning from pre-matriculation through

graduation 
2. Ensure that the student experience addresses the needs and expectations of today’s students,

including using technology appropriately to support processes. 
3. Articulate Student Affairs goals in relationship to Strategic Enrollment Management goals

and evaluate all current practices and expenditures against those goals. 

Other Issues 

• Ms. Wendy Harris has accepted the position of Registrar after a national search.
• Two student-serving positions in financial aid have been filled.

BOARD AGENDA 
TAB 10 – INFORMATION 
MARCH 28, 2017 



Page 2 of 2 

Enrollment Management Activity Highlights for March: 

Student Development Highlight 
Under the leadership of Director Nana Gyesie, the Student Success Center, which provides advising for 
students who have completed fewer than 12 credits or who are on academic warning, is engaged in 
using data about the kinds of advising events that occur, the numbers of students seen, and their 
subsequent enrollment behaviors to improve retention and re-enrollment outcomes.  In particular, they 
are identifying internal leaders to represent activities within the portfolio of advising tasks, and those 
leaders are working with their colleagues to develop cross training and accountability resources.   

Enrollment Management Highlight 
Having recently adopted Hobson’s, a technology system to streamline communications with prospective 
and current students, the Admissions Office, under the direction of Deneen Dangerfield, is 
implementing more effective use of information that we get on students along the arc of touch-points.  
Using multiple modes of communications, including personal outreach and follow up, and providing 
information in a manner that makes information items conversion events will reduce the incidence of 
student-initiated follow up, increases students’ perceptions of our responsiveness, and conserve staff 
members’ time and effort. 



TAB 11 
 



HR Active Search List As of March 17, 2017      

Div PIN # Position Search Committee 
Chair

Date(s) 
posted

Status
2/20/2017

1 AA 66821 Assistant Professor, Cyber 
Security 

Dr. Yohannes 
Weldegiorgis  07/21/2016 1st Interviews Scheduled

2 AA 66845 Assistant Professor of Dental 
Hygiene Annette Russell 3/2/2016 Search Committee is Screening

3 AA 66715 Associate Dean Karen Shallenberger 1/12/2017 Search is Open

4 AA 66755 Associate Dean of Health 
Professions Scott Olden 1/30/2017 1st Interviews Being Scheduled

5 B&F 66986 Sr. Budget Analyst Michelle Williams 1/8/2016 Search is Open

6 B&F 66978 Sr. Grants Accountant Dr. Michelle 
Towson 10/26/2015 Selection Made, Awaiting PAR

7 B&F 66837 Police Officer II Leonard Willis 1/27/2017 1st Interviews Scheduled

7 B&F 66996 Police Officer II Leonard Willis 1/27/2017 1st Interviews Scheduled

8 B&F 66997 Building Security Officer Leonard Willis 1/27/2017 1st Interviews Scheduled

9 IAMR 66665 Grants Specialist Vanessa Bell 9/16/2016 Search Reopened

10 IAMR 66946 Senior Research Analyst Diana Zilberman 12/2/2016 Search Reopened

IAMR 88494 Research Assistant Charles Wilson 2/27/2017 N/A

11 SA 66669 Registrar Dr. Enyinnaya 
Iweha 12/15/2016 1st Interviews Scheduled

BOARD AGENDA
TAB 11 - INFORMATION
MARCH 28, 2017



HR Active Search List As of March 17, 2017      

Div PIN # Position Search Committee 
Chair

Date(s) 
posted

Status
2/20/2017

12 SA 66848 Financial Aid Specialist Vera Brooks 2/14/2017 Search is Open

13 SA 66918 Student Success Advisor Nana Gyesie 2/27/2017 N/A

14 SA 66850 Student Success Advisor Nana Gyesie 2/27/2017 N/A

15 BCED 76595 Community ESL Coordinator Shawnette Shearin 1/27/2017 1st Interviews Scheduled

16 BCED 84364 Manager of Job Placement & 
Employer Engagement Ida Sass 2/27/2017 N/A


	BALTIMORE CITY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	TAB1
	TAB2
	TAB3
	TAB4
	TAB5
	TAB6
	TAB7
	TAB8
	TAB9
	TAB10
	TAB11
	Unapproved Board of Trustees Minutes February 28, 2017.pdf
	UNAPPROVED OPEN SESSION MINUTES
	II. New Business
	The Board requested Mr. Harris to join the Board table for a carry-over discussion from the 3 p.m. Finance Committee Meeting regarding the tuition and fees increase recommendation.
	The Board inquired as to the impact from anticipated revenue and any anticipated trends in future tuition increases.
	Mr. Harris referred to the Finance Committee Book under tab 6 of the report, the multiyear financial projections, which included current and future revenue projections.  In exhibit 1, revenue projections are listed for multiple years, fiscals 2016 – 2...
	Trustee Tildon inquires as to where BCCC falls in relationship to other community colleges in regards to tuition.
	Mr. Harris responded that BCCC tuition continues to be the lowest costing tuition of most community colleges.
	Mr. Harris stated that state funding is based upon FTE’s in which our budget projections are based upon and tuition and fees would increase our revenue.  The in/out of state tuition levels projections have fell beneath actuals since FY15 and FY 16.
	UPDATES
	B. Active Search List
	Closing Remarks:
	Dr. Yeary stated that there are conversations in Annapolis that may have a direct impact as to how the college will continue to operate.  Dr. Yeary assured the stakeholders that the Board and Dr. May remain committed to BCCC and the work that all put ...
	IV. MOTION FOR ADJOURNMENT
	IX. NEXT MEETING
	ATTENDANCE:
	BCCC Staff Present:
	Tope Aje, Nicole Becketts, Vanessa Bell, Linda Benjamin, Elena Berrocal, Vera Brooks, Leslie Brown, Maria Cazabon, Hsin-Yuan Chen, Deborah Childs, Daniel Coleman, Angela Donn, Patricia Edwards, Edward Ennels, Charlene Gray, Lyllis Green, Nana Gyesie, ...
	Others Present:
	CLOSED SESSION

	2017 Professor Emeritus Packet - BOARD Version.pdf
	Open Session Report  - March 2017 - Emeritus Nomination Memo
	BOT - March 2017 Faculty Emeritus Packet

	Open Session Report  - March 2017 - Emeritus Resolution (002).pdf
	Resolution to Confer Emeritus Status
	Resolution to Confer Emeritus Status
	Resolution to Confer Emeritus Status




